N €D 87y,
N “,

§ UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
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' 77 WEST JACKSON BOULEVARD

4 prote” : CHICAGO, IL 80604-3590
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REPLY TO THE ATTENTICN OF:

. SC-57

CERTIFIED MAIL

RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Loren Epler

Dynamic Surface Technologies International, Inc.
" 7784 Ronda Drive

Canton, Michigan 48187

Re: Dyvnamic Metal Treating Internaiional, Inc., d/b/a Dynamic Surface Technologies
International, Ine., Canton, Michigan '
Consent Agreement and Final Order
Docket No. ¢ AA_05-2014—0{)46 _

" Dear M. Epler,

Enclosed please find a fully executed Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO) in resofution
of the above case. U.S. EPA has filed the original CAFO with the Regional Hearing Clerk on

gj! %i i 27: 2&/’;{ . Please note Dynamic Metal Treating International, Inc., d/b/a
ynémic Surface Technologies International, Inc.’s (Dynamic’s) obligation to pay a civil penalty
in the amount of $19,803 in the manner prescribed in paragraphs 36-41 and please reference your

check with the docket number. Tn addition, Dynamic must complete three Supplemental
Environmental Projects worth $32,422 as prescribed in paragraphs 42-56.

Please feel free to contact Monika Chrzaszez at (312) 886-0181 if you have any questions
regarding the enclosed documents. Please direct any legal questions to William Wagner,
Regional Counsel, at (312) 886-4684. Thank you for your assistance in resolving this matter.
Sincerely yours,
/6/_‘ ichael E. Hax i
Chemical Emejgency

Preparedness & Prevention Section

Enclosure

ce. . William Wagner, ORC

Recycled/Recyclaile « Printed with Vegetable Olf Based Inks on 100% Recycled Faper (100% Post-Consumer)



UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
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)

Docket No CAA-05-2014-0046

In the Matter of: ) AUG 27 2014 —
Dynamic Metal Treating International, ; REGIONAL HEARING CLERK
Inc., d/b/a Dynamic Surface Technologies ) Déj\gsﬁE(m 5
International, Inc. ) e

) Proceeding to Assess a Civil Penalty
Canton, Michigan ) Under Section 113(d) of the Clean Air

) Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d)

)

)
Respondent. )

)

Consent Aereement and Final Order

Preliminary Statement

1. Thisisan adnﬁnis'tfat_ivei action commenced and conciuded under Section 113(d) of
the Clean Air Acf (the Act), 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d), and Sections 22.1(a)(2), 22.13(b), and
22-.'.1.8(b)(2) and (3) of the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative
Assessment of Civfl Penalties and the Revocation/Termination or Suspension of Permils
(Consolidated Rules), as codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 22, for violations of Section 112(r) of the Act,
42 U.S.C. § 7412(r), and the implementing regulations.

2. Complainant is the Director of the Superfund Division, United States Environmental
Protection Agency (U.S. EPA), Region 5, Chicago, Illinois.

3. Respondent is Dynamic Metal Treating International, Inc., d/b/a Dynamic Surface
Technologies International, Inc. (Dynamic or Respondent), a corporation doing business in the

State of Michigan.



4.  Where the parties agree to settle one or more causes of action before the filing of a
complaint, the administrative action may be commenced and concluded simultaneously by the
issuance of a consent agreement and final order (CAF 0). 40 C.F.R. § 22.13(b).

5. The parties agree that settling this action without the filing of a complaint or the
adjudication of any issue of fact or law is in their interest and in the public interest.

6. In order to tesolve this matter without litigation, Respondent consents to entry of
this CAFO and the assessment of the specified civil penalty, and agrees to comply with the terms

of the CAFO.

Jurisdiction and Waiver of Right to Hearing

7. Respoﬁdent admits the jurisdictional allegations in thirs' CA.FOi anci _neither admits
nor denies‘the factua-l allegati;f)ns in the CAFO o |

8. Respondent waives its right t6 reéiie‘st a Hear‘ing as i)roviaed' at 40 CF.R. § 22.15(¢c),
any right to contest the allegations in this CATO, and its right to appeal this CAFO.

Statutory and Regulatory Background

9. Section 112(r)(1) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(r)(1), provides that it shall be the
objective of the regulations and programs authorized under this subsection to prevent the
accidental release and to minimize the consequences of any such release of any substance listed
pursuant to Section 112(r)(3), or any other extremely hazardous substance.

10. Section 112(r)(3) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(r)(3), provides that the
Administrator shall promulgate, not later than 24 months after November 15, 1990, an initial list
of 100 substances which, in the case of an accidental release, are known to cause or may

reasonably be anticipated to cause death, injury, or serious adverse effects to human health or the

environment.



11. Section 112(r}(7)(A) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(r)(7)(A), provides that in
order to prevent accidental releases of regulated substances, the Administrator is authorized to
promulgate release prevention, detection, and correction requirements which may include
monitoring, record-keeping, reporting, training, vapor recovery, secondary containment, and
other design, equipment, work practice, and operational requirements.

12. Section 112(r)(7)(B)(i) of the Act, 42 .U.S.C. § 7412(r)}(7XB)(1), provides that
~ within 3 years after November 15, 1990, the Administrator shall promulgate reasonable
regulations and appropriate guidance to provide, to the greatest extent practicable, for the
prevention and detection of accidental releases of regulated substances and for response to such
feleases by thé oﬁners or operators of the sources of such releases. |

13.  Section 112()(7)(B)(ii) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7T412(r)(7)(B)(1D), prpvid_es’ that o
the regulations under this subparaglrapi—] shall reéujre the owner or dperatbr of stationary sources
- at which a regulated substance is present in more fhan a threshold quantity to prepare and
implement a Risk Management Plan (RMP) to detect and prevent or minimize accidental
releases of such éubstances from the stationary source, and té provide a prompt emergency
response to any such releases in order to protect human health and the environment.

14. Under Section 112(r) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(r), the Administrator initially
promulgated a list of regulated substances, with threshold quantities for applicability, at 59 Fed.
Reg. 4478 (January 31, 1994), which have since been codified, as amended, at 40 C.F.R.

§ 68.130.

15.  Under Section 112(r) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(r), the Administrator

promulgated “Accidental Release Prevention Requirements: Risk Management Programs Under

Clean Air Act Section 112(r)(7),” 61 Fed. Reg. 31668 (June 20, 1996), which were codified, and



amended, at 40 C.F.R. Part 68: Chemical Accident Prevention Provisions (Risk Management
Program Regulations).

16. “Stationary source” is defined to mean “any buildings, structures, equipment,
installations, or substance emitting stationary activities which belong to the same industrial
group, which are located on one or more contiguous properties, which are under the control of
the same person (or persons under common control), and from which an accidental release may
occur.” 40 C.F.R. § 68.3.

17. “Process” is defined to mean “any activity involving a regulated substance
including any use, storage, manufacturing, handling, or on-site movement of such substances, or
combination of these activities.” 40 C.I.R. § 68.3.

18.  Under Section 112(r)(3) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(¥)(3), the Administrator has
E listed ammonia (CAS No. 7664-41-7)as a substancé which, in the case of an accidental release,
s knde to cause ot may reasonably be anticipated to cause death, injury, or serious adverse
effects to human health or the environment. The Administrator has further identified a threshold
quantity of 10,000 lbé. .-for aﬁlmonia (CAS No. 7664-41-7) for determining Whetﬁer'sources are
subject to the Risk Management Program. 40 C.F.R. § 68.130, Tables 1 and 2.

19. 40 C.F.R. § 68.115 provides that a “threshold quantity of a regulated substance
listed in 40 C.F.R. § 68.130 15 presént at a stationary source if the total quantity of the regulated
substance contained in a process exceeds the threshold.”

20. 40 C.F.R. § 68.12 requires that the owner or operator of a stationary source
subject to 40 C.F.R. Part 68 shall submit a single RMP, as provided in 40 C.F.R. §§68.150

through 68.185.

21. 40 C.F.R. § 68.12(d) requires that, in addition to meeting the general requirements of



40 C.F.R. § 68.12(a), the owner or operator of a stationary source with a process subject to
Program 3 shall meet additional requirements identified at 40 C.F.R. § 68.12(d).

22, Section 113(d) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. §7413(d), and 40 C.F.R. Part 19, provide
that the Administrator of the U.S. EPA may assess a civil penalty of up to $32,500 per day of
violation up to a total of $270,000 for each violation of Section 112(r) of the Act that occurred
from March 15, 2004 to January 12, 2009, and a civil penalty of up to $37,500 per day of
violation up to a total of $295,000 for each violation of Section 112(r) of the Act that occurred
after January 12, 2009 and before December 6, 2013.

23, Section 113(d)(1) of the Act limits the Administrator’s authority to matters where
the first alleged date of violation occurred no more than 12 months prior to initiation of thé
administrative action, except where the Administrator and the Attorney General of the United
States joiﬁtly determine that a matter involving a longer period of violation is apptoﬁn'ate for an
‘ .adﬁiinjstrative penalty action.

Factual Allegations and Alleged Violations

24. Respondent is a “person,” as defined at Section 302(¢) of the Act,
42 U.S.C. § 7602(e).

25.  Respondent owns and operates a metal treating facility located at 7784 Ronda
Drive, Canton, Michigan, which consists of buildings, equipment, structures, and other stationary
items which are located on a single site or on contiguous or adjacent sites, and which are owned
or.operated by the same person (Dynamic facility).

26.  On August 31, 2006, pursuant to Section 112(x) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7412, and
implementing regulations, 40 C.F.R. Part 68, Respondent submitted to U.S. EPA an RMP for the

Dynamic facility.



27.  According to the RMP submitted to U.S. EPA by Respondent, the Dynamic
facility:
a. fell within NAICS Code 68760, as “Metal Heat 1reating™;

b. used ammonia (CAS No. 7664-41-7) as a process chemical during its operations;
and,

C. held at least 10,000 Ibs. of ammonia (CAS No. 7664;41-7).

28. On February 18, 2009, an authorized representative of U.S. EPA conducted an
inspection at the Dynamic facility to determine its compliance with 40 C.F.R. Part 68.

29.  The Dynamic facility is a “stationary source,” as defined at 40 C.FR.

§ 68.3.

30.  On August 31, 2006, havi_ng held for use in its operations at the Dynamic facility
10,000.‘1bs. or more of ammoﬁia;"Réspd;ldght_g};céeded the applicabili;cy threshéld established by
40 C.F.R. § 68.130, and became subject fo 40 C.FR. Part 68, . '

31.  Respondent’s process is subject to Program 3 requirements because the distance
to public receptors, .as defined at 40 C.F.R. § 68.30, is less than.the distance to the toxic endﬁoint
for a worsi-case release assessment under 40 C.F.R. § 68.25, and because the process is subject
to the process safety management standard at 29 U.S.C. § 191 0.119.

32,  Based on the inspection conducted on February 18, 2009, and a review of
additional information received by U.S. EPA subsequent to that date, U.S. EPA has identified the
following alleged violations by Respondent of the Risk Management Program Regulations:

a) Failure to maintain documentation on evaluation of consequences of deviation, as
required pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 68.65(c)(1)(v).
b) Failure to maintain Process and Instrumentation Diagrams, as required pursuant to

40 C.F.R. § 68.65(d)(1)(ii).

¢) Failure to maintain documentation on the relief system design and design basis, as

required pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 68.65(d)(1)(iv).
d) Failure to maintain documentation on safety systems, as required pursuant to 40 C.F.R.



§ 68.65(d)(1)(viii).

¢) Failure to document that equipment complies with reco gnized and generally accepted
good engineering practices, as required pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 68.65(d)(2).

f) Failure to perform an initial process hazard analysis that identified, evaluated, and
controlled the hazards involved in the process, as required pursuant to 40 C.F.R.

§ 68.67(a).

g) Failure to develop and implement written operating procedures that provide instructions
or steps for conducting activities associated with each covered process consistent with the
safety information, as required pursuant to 40 C.I'.R. § 68.69(a).

h) Failure to certify operating procedures annually, as required pursuant to 40 C.F.R.

§ 68.69(c).

i) Failure to establish and implement written procedures to maintain the on-going integrity
of the process equipment, as required pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 68.73(b). ,

j) Failure to follow recognized and generally accepted good engineering practices for
inspections and testing procedures, as required pursuant to 40 C.FR. § 68.73(d)(2).

k) Failure to ensure that the frequency of inspections and tests of process equipment is
consistent with applicable manufacturer’s recommendations, good engineering practices, -
and prior operating experiences or procedures, as required pursuant to 40 C.F.R. -
§ 68.73(d)(3). f | o

1) Failure to document the date of inspection or test, the name of the person who performed
the inspection of test, the Serial rinmber or other identifier of the equipment on which the
inspection or test was performed, a description of the inspection or test performed, and -
the results of the ifispection or tests on all process equipment, as required pursuant to
40 C.F.R. § 68.73(d)4).

m) Failure to establish and implement written procedures to manage changes to process
chemicals, technology, equipment, and procedures, and changes to stationary sources that
affect a covered process, as required pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 68.75(a).

n) Failure to conduct a pre-startup safety review, as required pursuant to 40 C.F.R.

§ 68.77(b).

33. Section 112(r)(7)(E) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(r)(7)(E), provides that after the |
effective date of any regulation or requirement promulgated pursuant to Section 112(r) of the
Act, it shall be unlawful for any person to operate any stationary source in violation of such
regulation or requirement.

34, Accordingly, the above-described violations of 40 C.F.R. Part 68 and Section
112(r) of the Act are subject to the assessment of a civil penalty under Section 113(d) of the Act,
42 U.S.C. § 7413(d).

35. Pursuant to Section 113(d)(1) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d)(1), the



Administrator and the Attorney General of the United States, each through their respective
delegates, jointly determined that an administrative penalty action is appropriate for this
complaint, where the first alleged date of violation, February 18, 2009, occurred more than 12
months prior to the initiation of this administrative action.
Civil Penalty
36.  Based on an analysis of the factors specified in Section 113(e) of the Act,
42 U.S.C. § 7413(e), the facts of this case, and factors in the Combined Enforcement Policy for
CAA Section 112(r) Risk Management Progtam,-speciﬁcally, Respondent’s cooperation during
the pre-filing mvestlgatton and prompt correction of non—comphance and Respondent’s
agreement to perform three supplemental env1r0nmenta1 projects (SEP s), Complalnant has-
determined that an. appropnate ewﬂ penalty to settle this action is $ 19,803.
| 3"7. Wlthm 30 days after the effectlve date of this CAFO, Respondent must pay the
$ 19,803 civil penalty by sendmg a cashier’s or certified check, by regular U.S. Postal Service
~ mail, payable to the “Treasu‘rer,‘ United States of America,” to:
U.S. EPA | |
" Fines and Penaliies
Cincinnati Finance Center
P.O. Box 979077
St. Louis, MO 63197-9000
The check must note “Dynamic Metal Treating International, Inc.” and the docket number_of this
CAFO.
38. A transmittal letter stating Respondent’s name, complete address, and the case
docket number must accompany the payment. Respendent must send a copy of the check anci

transmittal letter to:



Attn: Regional Hearing Clerk, (E-19])

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 3
77 West Jackson Boulevard

Chicago, IL. 60604

Monika Chrzaszez (SC-5J)

Chemical Emergency Preparedness and Prevention Section
Superfund Division

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 3
77 West Jackson Boulevard

Chicago, 1L 60604

William Wagner, (C-14J)

Office of Regional Counsel

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Reglon 5
77 West Jackson Boulevard

Chicago, IL. 60604

39, Thié civil penalty is not deductible for federal tax purposes.

40, If Res‘bbndent does not tirhely pay the civil penalty, U.S. EPA may bring an
action to collect 'any ﬁnpaid pdlrtion of the penalty with interest, handling charges, nonpayment
penalties and the United States’ enforcement expenses for the collection action under Section
113(d)(5) of the Act, 42 Us.C. § 7413(d)(5). The validity, amount, and appropriateness of the
c1v11 penalty are not reviewable in a collection action.

41.  Pursuant to 31 C.F.R. § 901.9, Respondent must pay the following on any amount
overdue under this CAFO. Interest will accrue on any overdue amount from the date payment
was due at a rate established by the Secretary of the Treasury. Respondent must pay a $15
handling charge each month that any portion of the penalty is more than 30 days past due. In
addition, Respondent must pay a quarterly nonpayment penalty each quarter during which the
assessed penalty is overdue according to section 113(d)(5) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d)(5).

This nonpayment penalty will be 10 percent of the aggregate amount of the outstanding penalties

and nonpayment penalties accrued from the beginning of the quarter.



SUPPLEMENTAL ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECT

42.  Respondent must complete three SEPs designed to protect the environment and
public health by improving emergency planning and preparedness.

43, Respondent must complete the SEPs as follows: within 120 days after the filing of
this CAFO Respondent shall:

a. Purchase and install a Single Channel Gas Alarm (Ammonia Detector) system at

the facility that will be monitored by a third party;

b.  Purchase HAZMAT equipment for the Canton Fire Department that will include:

2- Multigas Detectors with PID, 10” probe line and calibration kit, and 1- rapidly
deployable multi-sensor gas detection sensor that enables real-time safety and
security threat detection;

c. Prepare -trajii-ling mat.erial and train the Cantoﬁ F.iréml.)epartment HAZMAT team

on Ammonia Awareness and Safety and on ihe use of ﬁew HAZMAT equipment.

44. Respondeﬁt must spend .at least $32,422 to accomplish the projects described in
the previous two paragraphs.

45.  Respondent certifies that it is not required to perform or develop the SEPs by any
law, regulation, grant, order, or agreement, or as injunctive relief as of the date it signs this |
CAFO. Respondent further certifies that it has not received, and is not negotiating to receive,
credit for the SEP in any other enforcement action.

46.  U.S. EPA may inspect the facility at any time to monitor Respondent’s
compliance with this CAFO’s SEP requirements.

47.  Respondent must submit three SEP completion reports to U.S. EPA within 180

days from the filing of this CAFO. This report must contain the following information:



48.

a. Detailed description of the SEP as completed, including a copy of all
training materials developed;

b. Description of any operating problems and the actions taken to correct the
problems;
C. Ttemized costs of the equipment purchased, training materials developed,

and hours associated with the development and the distribution of training;

d. Certification that Respondent has completed the SEP in compliance with
this CAFQO; and
e. Description of the environmental and public health benefits arising from

the SEP (quantifying the benefits and pollution reductions, if feasible).

Respondent must submit all notices and reports required by this CAFO by first

class mail to Monika Chrzaszcz of the Chemical Emergency Preparedness and Prevention

Section at the address specified in paragraph 38, above.

49.

In each report that Respondent submits as provided by this CAFO, it must certify

that the report is true and complete by including the following statement signed‘ by one of its

officers:

I certify that T am familiar with the information in this document and that, based
on my inquiry of those individuals responsible for obtaining the information, it is
true and complete to the best of my knowledge. I know that there are significant
penaliies for submitting false information, including the possibility of fines and -
imprisonment for knowing violations.

50.

Following receipt of the SEP completion reports described in paragraph 47,

above, U.S. EPA must notify Respondent in writing that:

51.

a. It has satisfactorily completed the SEPs and the SEP reports;

b. There are deficiencies in the SEPs as completed or in the SEP report and
U.S EPA will give Respondent 30 days to correct the deficiencies; or

c. It has not satisfactorily completed the SEPs or the SEP reports and
U.S. EPA will seck stipulated penalties under paragraph 52.

If U.S. EPA exercises option b, above, Respondent may object in writing to the



deficiency notice within 10 days of receiving the notice. The parties will have 30 days from
U.S. BPA’s receipt of Respondent’s objection to reach an agreement. If the parties cannot reach
an agreement, U.S. EPA will give Respondent a written decision on its obj ection. Respondent
will comply with any reasonable requirements U.S. EPA imposes in its decision. If Respondent
does not complete the SEPs as required by U.S. EPA’s decision, Respondent will pay stipulated
penalties to the United States under paragraph 52, below.
52.  If Respondent violates any requirement of this CAFO relating to the SEPs,
Respondent must pay stipulated penalties to the United States as follows
a. Except as provided in subparagraph b, below if Respondent did not
complete the SEPs satisfactorily according to the requlrements of this CAFO
Respondent must pay a penalty of $25, 197
b, o If Respondent did not complete the SEPs Satlsiactonly, but U.S. EPA
' detennlnes that Respondent made good faith and timely. efforts-to complete the.
SEPs and certified, with supporting documents, that it spent at least 90 percent of
the amount set forth in paragraph 44, Respondent will not be liable for any
stipulated penalty under subparagraph a, above.
c. If Respondent completed the SEPs satisfactorily, but spent less than 90
percent of the amount set forth in paragraph 44, Respondent must pay a penalty of
$5,000.
d. if Respondent did not submit timely the SEP completion report,

Respondent must pay penalties in the following amounts for each day after the
report was due until it submits the report:

Penalty Per Violation Per Day Period of Violation
$100 1% through 14" day
$200 15" through 30™ day
$500 31 day and forward

53.  U.S. EPA’s determinations of whether Respondent completed the SEP
satisfactorily and whether Respondent made good faith and timely efforts to complete the SEP

will bind Respondent.



54.  Respondent must pay any stipulated penalties within 15 days of receiving
U.S. EPA’s written demand for the penalties. Respondent will use the method of payment
specified in paragraphs 36-41, above, and will pay interest, handling charges, and nonpayment
penalties on any overdue amounts.

55.  Any public statement that Respondent makes referring to the SEP must include
the following language, “Dynamic Metal Treating International, Inc. undertook this project in
settlement of an enforcement action brought by the United States Environmental Protection
Agency for violations of the emergency planning requirements of the Clean Air Act.”

56.  For federal income tax purposes, Respondent will neither capitalize into inventory
or basis, nor deduct any amount of the $32.422 expenditure incurred iﬁ performing the-SEP, and
any amoﬁnfs-spent in excess of that will be handled in compliance wi_tﬁ all applicable tax laws

and regulations.. |

General Pro_visions

57.  This CAFO resolves Respondent’s 1iabilityr only for federal civil penalties for the
| violations alleged in this CAFO.

58.  The CAFO does not affect the right of U.S. EPA or the United States to pursue
appropriate injunctive or other equitable relief or criminal sanctions for any violation of 1a§v.

59, This CAFO does not affect Respondent’s responsibility to comply with the Act
and other applicable federal, state, and local laws. Except as provided in paragraph 57, above,
compliance with this CAFO will not be a defense to any actions subsequently commenced
pursuant to federal laws administered by Complainant.

60.  Respondent certifies that to the best of its knowledge it is complying with

40 C.F.R. Part 68.



61.  The terms of this CAFO bind Respondent, its successors, and assigns.

62.  Each person signing this consent agreement certifies that he or she has the
authority to sign for the party whom he or she represents and to bind that party to its terms.

63.  Each party agrees to bear its own costs and attorneys’ fees in this action.

64.  This CAFO constitutes the entire agreement between the parties.

63. The effective date of this CAFO is the date when this CAFO is filed with the

Regional Hearing Clerk’s office.



CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER

In the Matter of Dynamic Metal Treating International, Inc. d/b/a Dynamic Surface
Technologies International, Inc.

Docket No. CAA-05-2014-0046

Dynamic Metal Treating International, Inc., Respondent

pai §/8 [0l L0 g

Loren\Epler\ _ f .
Dynamic Metal Treating International, Tnc.

United States Environmental Protection Agency, Complainant -

g-15~1Y | b Qe €12

Date Richard C. Karl, Director
‘ Superfund Division



CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER

In the Matter of Dynamic Metal Treating International, Inc., d/b/a Dynamic Surface
Technologies International, Inc.

Docket No. CAA-05-2014-0046

Final Order

This Consent Agreement and Final Order, as agreed to by the parties, shall become
effective immediately upon filing with the Regional Hearing Clerk. This Final Order concludes

this proceeding pursuant to 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.18 and 22.31. IT IS SO ORDERED. .

—

y-/8- 2079 —
Date ' Susan Hedman
L h “Regional Administrator
U.S. Environmeéntal Protection Agency
Region5 =~ -




Certificate of Service

I bereby certify that I have caused a copy of the foregoing Consent Agreement and Final
Order (CAFO) to be served upon the persons designated below, on the date below, by causing
said copies to be delivered by depositing in the U.S. Mail, First Class, and certified-return receipt
requested, postage prepaid, at Chicago, Tlinois, in envelope addressed to:

Loren Epler -

Dynamic Metal Treating International, Inc.
7784 Ronda Drive

Canton, Michigan 48187

I have further caused the original CAFO and this Certificate of Service, and one copy, to
be filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk, U.S. EPA, Region 5, 77 West Jackson Boulevard,
Chicago, lilinois 60604, on the date below.

Dated thishh | day of _fugus oo Q vﬂ\ Qgﬁé;""

: Thceall P Sandecs
.. U'S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region 5



